
AGENDA 
Nevada City Fire Safety Advisory Committee 

 
August 10th, 2020, 5:30-7:00 pm,  via Zoom 

Committee members: Chair, Vice-Mayor Minett, Sam Goodspeed, Terry Anderson, 
Sam Gitchel, Carrie Monohan, Annette Seabury, Richard Thomas, Teri Voorhes; 
Facilitator Pete Williams  

 
 

In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom 
has issued Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements 

of the Brown Act.  Please be advised that the Council Chambers are closed to 
the public. 

For the Meeting on  Monday August 10th, Will be held via Zoom 
 

Public attendance: 
For the health and safety of the public we are asking that you please attend 

the meeting via Zoom (an internet platform). 
 

1. If you would like to attend this meeting as an observer, please email 
Mayor Minett at erin4nevadacity@gmail.com no later than 1 p.m. on  Monday 
August 10th,2020. You will receive an email with a Zoom link to this meeting 
approximately 10 minutes before the meeting starts. 

 
2. If you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item, please submit 
your comment via email to Mayor Minett at  erin4nevadacity@gmail.com    
before 1 p.m. on   Monday August 10th, 2020 Please limit comments to 200 
words or less. Every effort will be made to read your comment into the record, 
but some comments may not be read due to time limitations. If you are 
attending the meeting via Zoom, public comments will be accepted at the 
beginning of the meeting.  
 
3. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Deputy 
City Clerk at (530) 265- 2496 x133. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. [28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA Title II]. Language 
translation services are available for this meeting by calling (714) 754- 5225 
at least 48 hours in advance.  
The City of Nevada City and The Fire Safety Advisory Committee thanks you in 
advance for taking all precautions to prevent spreading the COVID 19 virus.  
 
1.  Call to Order  

mailto:erin4nevadacity@gmail.com


 
2.  Roll Call: Chair, Vice-Mayor Minett, Sam Goodspeed, Terry Anderson, Sam 

Gitchel, Carrie Monohan, Annette Seabury, Richard Thomas, Teri Voorhes; 
Facilitator Pete Williams  

 
3.  Project Scope Reminder (Erin)  

“To promote public fire safety and community involvement to protect Nevada City 
residents, business owners, visitors and structures from wildfire. Establish 
objectives to support overall vegetation management and wildfire mitigation, 
identify funding sources, and promote public education and awareness.”  

 
4.  Meeting #5 purpose (Pete/Erin):  

● Review work plans, formulate next steps   
● Select Vice Chair 

 
5.  Public comment  
 
6.  Announcements from committee members (All)  

7.  Review/approve May 20 minutes  (All)  

8.  Review agenda -- (Pete)  

9.  Select Vice Chair (Erin)  
 
10.  Review and discuss team work plans (Pete, all). Teams that presented their plans 

in the last meeting may provide an update.  Suggested points: 
● Give an overview of the project selected, i.e. what you decided to 

pursue/what is the goal 
● Remind us where you were (what you had done) as of the last meeting 
● What you did since the last meeting  
● What you plan to do next  
● Questions for the group  
● Questions and suggestions from the group  

11.  Schedule next meeting and discuss schedule going forward (Gitchel)  

12.   Meeting plus-delta (Pete)  

13.   Adjournment  

 
 
 

 



Present NAME EMAIL/PHONE ACTION ITEMS 

X Erin Minett,  
Chair 
City Council 

erinrminett@gmail.com 
 

530 263 7102 

● Work with Pete to prepare the next 
meeting agenda and post.  

● Host Aug 10 meeting.  
● Add to or edit 

“NCFSACSubCommittePlans” Google 
Doc 

 

X Pete Williams,  
Facilitator 

peteandsuewi@sbcglobal.net 
(916) 965-4561 

● Work with Erin to prepare the next 
meeting agenda 

X Sam Goodspeed, 
NC Fire 

sam.goodspeed@nevadacityca.
gov 

(530) 957-9892 

● Add to or edit 
“NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” Google 
Doc 

X Sam Gitchel, 
Greater 
Champion FWC 

samgitchel@gmail.com 
530 470 3200  

● Add to or edit 
“NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” Google 
Doc 

X Terry Anderson, 
Willow Valley 
FWC 

itstea@gmail.com 
530 264 7089 

● Add to or edit 
“NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” Google 
Doc 

X Teri Voorhes,  
Deer Cr 
Southside FWC 

Teriryan13@gmail.com 
 

650 740 9678 

● Take meeting minutes 
July/August/September and work with 
Erin to publish 

● Create “NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” 
Google Doc 

● Add to or edit 
“NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” Google 
Doc 

X Richard Thomas, 
Deer Cr 
Southside FWC  

randtthomas@sbcglobal.net 
530 264 6740 

● Add to or edit 
“NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” Google 
Doc 

Out of 
Town 

Annette Seabury,  
Greater Cement 
Hill FWC 

netsnuthouse@yahoo.com 
925 642 3799 

● Add to or edit 
“NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” Google 
Doc 

X Carrie Monohan, 
The Sierra Fund 

carrie.monohan@sierrafund.org 
530 265 8454 ext. 214 

● Add to or edit 
“NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” Google 
Doc 

 

mailto:peteandsuewi@sbcglobal.net
https://hangouts.google.com/?action=chat&pn=%25252B19169654561&hl=en&authuser=0
mailto:sam.goodspeed@nevadacityca.gov
mailto:sam.goodspeed@nevadacityca.gov
https://hangouts.google.com/?action=chat&pn=%25252B15309579892&hl=en&authuser=0
mailto:samgitchel@gmail.com
mailto:itstea@gmail.com
https://hangouts.google.com/?action=chat&pn=%25252B15302647089&hl=en&authuser=0
mailto:Teriryan13@gmail.com
https://hangouts.google.com/?action=chat&pn=%25252B16507409678&hl=en&authuser=0
mailto:randtthomas@sbcglobal.net
https://hangouts.google.com/?action=chat&pn=264-6740&hl=en&authuser=0
mailto:netsnuthouse@yahoo.com
https://hangouts.google.com/?action=chat&pn=%25252B19256423799&hl=en&authuser=0
mailto:carrie.monohan@sierrafund.org


 
Nevada City Fire Safety Advisory Committee 

July 6, 2020, 5:30 - 7:00 p.m. via Zoom 
 
 

Minutes (3 pages) 
 
 
 
 
Next meeting:   Monday,  August 10 5:30 pm, Zoom Meeting    (Agenda topics should be 
submitted to Erin Minett by July 31) 
Please add or edit “NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” Google Doc by July Call to order:  Meeting 
called to order 5:35pm by Erin Minett. 

 
1. Roll Call:  All present except for Annette Seabury who let us know she would be out of 

town.   
 

2. Project Scope Reminder:  Erin reviewed our Project Scope to set the tone for the 
meeting.  “To promote public fire safety and community involvement to protect Nevada 
City residents, business owners, visitors and structures from wildfire.  Establish 
objectives to support overall vegetation management and wildfire mitigation, identify 
funding sources, and promote public education and awareness.” 

 
3. Public Comments: There were no public comments.     

 
4. Team Scribe for this meeting? :   Team Scribe for July 7, 2020, August 10, 2020 and 

September ?, 2020 meeting is Teri Voorhes.      
 

5. Announcements from Committee Members: Sam Goodspeed met with Joanne 
Drummond, PG&E Vegetation Program Manager and former Fire Safe Council 
Executive Director.   She wanted to ensure that all the various agencies are working 
together.     She discussed current PG&E projects (including working with CalTrans to 
address Banner overcrossing) and future projects (North side of PG&E distribution line 
on Deer Creek-have run out of funds for 2020 but top of the list for 2021).    Erin and 
Joanne have also been discussing PG&E plans for PSPS.   PG&E is making every effort 
to address the lines, improve switches to ensure that power stays on for part of 7Hills 
and all of Broad Street.   
Richard Thomas was working on Sugarloaf and asked if the clearing that had recently 
been done was for a fuel break.   Sam Goodspeed confirmed at this time it is for gaining 
access for homeless camp clean up.   

 
6. Review/Approve May 20 minutes:  Sam Gitchel moved to approve minutes/Richard 

Thomas seconded and all approved.  



 
7. Review Agenda:  No additional items added 

 
8. Meeting #4 Purpose: To share progress in each of the Five Project Areas.     

 
1. Work Team Reports - Planning/Funding/Community Organizing/Fuel Reduction/Public 

Education:   
• Confirmed receipt of all committee planning documents - agreed that it would be best to 

put them all in one Google Doc (Teri Voorhes will do this).   
• Agreed that all committee members will review the “NCFSACSubCommitteePlans” 

Google Doc.   All have Editor rights and can ask questions/give comments and 
feedback and be ready to discuss further at next meeting. 

• Each Sub-Committee came up with one action item to come back to next meeting with:    
A. Planning Team:     Task 1   Carrie will work with Nick to see that progress is made 

on Inventory City-Owned properties 
B. Fuels Reduction Team:  Strategies A under 1.  Clear Roadside vegetation. Sam 

Gitchel will create an article for the upcoming FWC newsletters and share out.  
Sam Githcel./Teri V/Terry A will ensure that www.nevadacityca.gov has easy to 
navigate links for residents to use as they are the eyes and ears and can assist in 
reporting trouble areas/properties. 

C. Funding Team:  All committee members asked to help in Strategies A Identify and 
pursue grant funding.    Keep an eye out -google search, read foundation websites 
and agency websites.   Report back and TSF can evaluate. 

D. Community Organizing:   Sam Gitchel/Teri V/Terry A will develop a list of 
recommended websites and resources that www.nevadacityca.gov can add to 
help Nevada City residents.    The list will be submitted to Erin Minett who can 
assign it to appropriate city staff to update.   

E. Public Education:   Sub-Committee should meet and update “NCFSACSub-
CommitteePlans” Google Doc. 

 
 
2. Meeting Schedule Going Forward:   Our next meeting will be held on Monday,   August 

10 5:30-7:00pm via Zoom 
 

3. +/▵ :  Pete recommended that we routinely review what went well (+) and what we could 
improve (△) as a step in closing our meetings.  This meeting’s pluses were: Fine job 
considering all that is going on.   Good job getting back on course.  Sam Goodspeed 
thanks us all for our efforts.  We did go over in time however it was pointed out that we 
had a lot to catch up on.   

 
4. Adjournment: Meeting adjourned at 7:10pm and Aug 10, 2020 meeting set for 5:30pm.   

-- Notes taken by Teri Voorhe 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


Nevada City Fire Advisory Committee WORK ANALYSIS MATRIX 
ICS 234-CG 

1.  Incident Name 
Community Organizing 

2. Operational Period 
From:       2020                     To: 

3.  Operations Objectives 
DESIRED OUTCOME 

4.  Strategies 
HOW 

5.  Tactics/Work Assignments 
WHO, WHAT, WHERE, WHEN 

 
Assist neighbors who are 
unable to maintain their 
own properties 
 

EXISTING: 

● Federal 
Programs 

● Nev. Co. 
Ordinance 

● Nev City 
Ordinance 

● Firewise 
Community 
Assistant 
Programs 

● Chipping 
Program 

● Defensible 
Space 
Advisory 
Visit  

NEW: 

● A community 
Fund for 
clearing 

● Volunteer 
Recruitment 
for City 
owned 
Properties 
[same idea is 
in Fuel 
Reduction 
work plan]  

● Next Door 
App, new use 
of it 

 

 

-Update Nevada City website with 
existing programs, including 
Firewise programs, and County 
Programs 
 
-Nev Co. Firesafe Council at the 
County has an application for 
residents to fill out if they have 
needs, a FEMA program, very 
slow 

-County compliance efforts 

-City compliance efforts, form 
goes to Sam Goodspeed 

-Firewise Communities have 
neighbors that need help and some 
have assistant programs with 
volunteers 

-NC and Firewise have chipping 
programs 

-Firesafe Council-County 

-City would need someone to help 
with volunteer recruitment efforts 
 
 



Outreach and 
Disseminate emergency 
preparedness information 
eg. the OES materials on 
“find your five”-neighbor 
system to assure 
complete 
notification/evacuation 
information and Ready 
Set Go   It’s especially 
important to reach the 
non-choir -- i.e. 
participate in non-fire 
events and media.   
 
 
 

 
● Table events 
● Make sure its is on 

the NC website 
● Include in NC 

newsletter 
● Post on social media, 

eg NC Peeps 
 

 

 
-TSF can help with outreach as it 
overlaps with some of our existing 
programs on Environmental Health 
-Firewise communities can make 
information available, need to 
make coordination more official  
such as one member from each 
(n=7) is contacted regularly 
-who at the City can be incharge of 
outreach? Erin can do newsletter 
for example 
-City can make materials available 
on website,  at city hall and/or at 
the pool or other city functions 
routinely, and social media 
Suggestion: assess their interests 
and boundaries.  I believe Greater 
Champion, Deer Creek Southside, 
and Greater Cement Hill 
encompass land owned by the City 
or within City limits. Not sure 
about Banner Mountain, Lake 
Vera, Willow Valley.  

 
Reach out to DAC 
communities in Nevada 
County Re: Needs around 
fuels management 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Identify DAC communities: 
mobile home parks, 
apartment complexes, 
property owners, renters 
 
Develop Relationships with 
DAC communities 
 
Disseminate information to 
DAC communities 
 
Firesafe program for a Fire 
Safe Advisory Visit, to get a 
prescription for what the 
property needs in order to be 
hardened, especially useful 
for renters to advocate to 
landlords  

 
-TSF can help with DAC outreach 
as it overlaps with some of our 
existing programs on 
Environmental Health 
 
-Firewise communities can make 
information available, need to be 
aware of DAC communities in 
their regions 
 
-City can make materials available 
at city hall and/or at the pool or 
other city functions routinely, 
materials can be made available in 
Spanish and English 



Adopt a property 
program! 

NC sliver properties  can 
be get adopted, signs on 
sites and on interactive 
map, adoptees ensure that 
areas are treated by either 
doing the work themselves 
or paying for the work to 
be done, grps can adopt 
too 

 

-TSF is creating a map of 
properties with information about 
who has adopted 
-City or Firewise communities 
could manage the adoption 
process, and agreements, as well as 
do outreach. Could be helpful for 
the City to kick start some of the 
clearing. One sliver near me needs 
heavy work before neighbors 
would want to take it on. I talked 
to the volunteer who cares for 1/3 
of another sliver.  His first 
question: can the City start paying 
him for his work? “I could be 
earning $35 an hour doing this 
somewhere else”.  This sliver also 
has 2 large trees that should come 
down. 

Adopt a hydrant program goal of this program is for 
neighbors to know where 
their hydrants are, keep 
their clear of vegetation 
and for them to in return 
know when they are 
tested, hydrants can be 
painted after they are 
tested 

 

-NC division chief would need to 
test the hydrants, the City could 
organize interested parties 
-Firewsie communities can do 
outreach for this program  Same 
idea in Planning work plan. 
 

 Ensure that street signs can be 
seen during a fire 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Find out what the city has done 
already to identify signs that need 
replacing  I talked to Bubba 
Highsmith July 16. Project is on 
hold due to funding. Is this grant-
fundable?  

Replace signs with metal reflective 
signs 

 

 
 

-Reach out to NC FWC’s to 
organize funding of street signs 

-FWC can Auction old signs to 
pay for new signs 

   
WORK ANALYSIS MATRIX FORM INSTRUCTIONS (ICS FORM 234-CG)  Rev. 8/05 
  



Draft Work Plan (5/29/2020) rev 6/11/2020  

Goal: Identify and pursue grant funding 

Note: Any pursuit of funding for the City will be approved by City Council 
Scope: Public grants/Foundation funding for city property lands 
 
(Each grant has a different level of effort, feasibility, potential impact and chance of success) 

Strategies: 

A. Identify grants: Anyone can identify grants and send them to TSF to evaluate, grants can 
be found by Google searching, reading foundation websites and agency websites 

B. Evaluate grant opportunity: The Advisory Council can evaluate grant opportunities as 
they come up to see if they are worth pursuing and then share those that are with City 
Council to get approval to proceed  

C. Approve pursuit of grants: The City Council will approve grant  
D. Write grant: TSF can write grants for planning and implementation on public lands, 

others can write grants too to fund actions that are identified 
E. Administration of grants: TSF will administer grants and manage grants that we write, 

City would administer grants that others write or other arrangement 

The priority to find funding for is Planning and Regional Coordination.  
Task 1: Develop a plan for Nevada City Property fuel treatment and maintenance.  
Task 2: Coordinate with GV and Nev. Co. on fuels reduction planning and implementation  
Task 3: Coordinate with neighboring properties, firewise associations and other planning units 
 
Another funding idea: Development of Standards: Integrate fuel reduction projects with 
watershed health, habitat, cultural and traditional ecological knowledge 

Future funding could be focused around: Implementation of the Plan: Funding for identified 
projects, shovel ready projects 

Sidelined for now: 

● Work with local businesses for fundraising, encourage creation of community-wide 
fundraising events- Who? Neighborhood associations? 

● Explore opportunities for Fire Safe Councils shovel ready projects- Who? Can the 
firewise associations do this?  I like the idea of having a few projects identified and 
shovel-ready, whether the funding is by the Fire Safe Council or others.  How about the 
City slivers?  Having them brought up to standards could make it easier to get volunteers 
to maintain them. What approvals/forms would the City require? What contractors could 
quote the jobs?  

● Create sustainable funding source for fuels What could this be? 



● The BOS was working on a fire mitigation tax, but this is not going forward at this 
tim 

● DRAFT Work Plan -- June 13, 2020 

Planning Team 
For presentation to the Nevada City Fire Safety Advisory Committee on June 17 
 
Affinity Exercise: Planning topics 

● Inventory city-owned properties  
● Assess properties for current condition 
● Create a vegetation management plan for city-owned properties 
● Review NC vegetation ordinance to ensure it agrees with GV 
● Determine number and capacity of hydrants  
● Assess (1) value and (2) feasibility of fuel break/modification across Deer Creek Canyon.  

 
Task 1: Inventory City-owned properties   

Strategies:   

A. Develop a comprehensive map in GIS of properties owned or managed by NC.  Attribute 
tables can include size, condition and priority for treatment, making the inventory an 
interactive tool.  (TSF (and NC staff -- who_____?)).  

Cost: In-kind 
Feasibility: Very feasible.  A living document; some maintenance required.  
Impact:  Organizing tool.  Basic to developing  vegetation management plan 
Chance of success: high; mostly done.  
 

B. Make the GIS database available to Nevada City even though the City does not have 
GIS software.  This might be provided by the County.  (Who?) 

Cost: ? 
Feasibility: ? 
Impact: ? 
Chance of success: ?  

 
Task 2: Assess fuel conditions on property owned or managed by Nevada City.  

Strategies:   



A. Summarize recent treatments -- hand crews, prescribed grazing, etc. -- for scale 
(number of acres), effectiveness, lesson learned.  Chief Goodspeed provided an 
estimate at a meeting last summer.  (I can’t find my notes.)  

Cost: In-kind time 
Feasibility: high  
Impact: first step in planning future treatments  
Chance of success: high chance we can produce rough estimate 

B. Visit and assess vegetation conditions on properties owned or managed by Nevada City.  
Develop a report on vegetation conditions and treatment recommendations specific to 
each site.  This report will be provided to the City to prioritize areas for treatment.  
(Forester)  

Cost: Need funding for forester consultant.  See task 3, below.  
Feasibility: Need to identify and write a grant 
Impact: Broad impact; essential step for vegetation management plan.  
Chance of success: very fundable activities 

Task 3:  Develop a vegetation management plan with twin goals of wildfire mitigation and 
restoration of healthy forests and watershed.   

For City-owned and -managed property, the plan will include site-specific treatment guidance 
and treatment cycles.  Sites and treatments will be prioritized by condition and strategic location 
for defending Nevada City.  This plan will also include recommendations for large scale, multi-
property landscape treatments such as shaded fuel breaks within Nevada City’s entire sphere of 
influence.  Execution of plans on private land must be carried out by owners, FW groups, or 
others.   

Strategies: 

A. Get firefighter and stakeholder input.  Conduct fire modelling to identify strategic defense 
lines within Nevada City’s sphere of influence.  (Forester, CalFire?) 

Cost: staff/consultant time.  Don’t know what cost if any for fire modelling  
Feasibility:  
Impact: Ensures the plan reflects thinking and gains support of important stakeholders.  
Chance of success: ?  

B. Integrate the forester’s report and treatment recommendations (task 2) with knowledge 
of firefighting leaders, community members, and fire modelling/wildfire history.  (Forester 
or other consultant).   

Cost: Estimate $50-150K (includes assessment, above).  Will require grant funding. Over 
the long term, fuel treatments and re-assessments of City properties will be needed on an 
ongoing, cyclic basis.  



Feasibility:  Very feasible once funded to hire consultant.  
Impact: Major  

● Positions NC to apply for fuel reduction grants to carry out the plan.  
● Establishes priorities for resource allocation, allowing NC to budget and seek funds to 

maintain City-owned lands.  
● Ensures that fuel reduction activities are congruent with standards for healthy 

watershed, water quality, and habitat.  
● Provides guidance to thinning crews and volunteers.  
● Allows neighborhood/volunteer/Firewise efforts to support the larger plan.  
● Provides transparency and thus improves community buy-in.  
● Allows us to achieve success by providing annual targets and enhancing public input.  

Chance of success: Once funded, high chance of success  

Task 4: Assess City water delivery system for firefighting capacity 

Strategies: 

A. Get  available data on:  
● Supply (Chief Goodspeed; done)  
● Leak detection and repair CABY project  (Bill Falconi) 
● Projected drawdown in a catastrophic wildfire  
● Overall capacity -- How many hydrants could potentially be used at once?  Has the 

system been tested at that level?   Where are the weaknesses? How reliable are 
peripheral lines in a heavy-use scenario?     

Cost:  start with in-kind time of NC staff   
Feasibility:  in house, call our partners (NID & Grass Valley Fire) 
Impact:  Could improve preparedness for fighting fire; reassures and informs community  
Chance of success: high 

Task 5:  Coordinate and collaborate with existing efforts in Grass Valley and local Firewise 
communities.   

Strategies: 

A. Review NC vegetation abatement ordinance to ensure it agrees with Grass Valley’s. 
 

B. Review and coordinate with Nevada County Community Wildfire Protection Plan.  (Sam 
Gitchel) 
 

C. Does Grass Valley have a veg management plan we could use as a model? 
 

D. Meet and discuss these plans with stakeholder groups including FW Coalition, Fire Safe 
Council, watershed work group (name?) .  Use town halls and other public forums to 
communicate with the public about these plans.  



 
Cost:  In-kind time of personnel  
Feasibility: Just asking questions of others, holding meetings  
Impact: important to avoid overlapping efforts; increases how prepared we are as a 
community  
Chance of success: high  

DRAFT Work Plan v2 
Fuel Reduction Team, NC FIre Safety Advisory Committee 
June 11, 2020 
 
“Affinity exercise” points: 

● Clear roadside vegetation 
● Hand clearing program w/volunteers 
● Develop green waste dump site 
● Use CCC to clear properties 
● Organize volunteer Scotch Broom pulls 
● Use prescribed fire to maintain City properties that have been cleared 

 
Our overarching view is that funding will be necessary to do significant fuel reduction projects.  
A key first step is the creation of a vegetation management plan. Our current efforts may be 
best focused on activities that can pave the way for such funding.   
 

1. Clear roadside vegetation   
This is a broad objective.  A basic distinction is public vs. private property.  

 
Private: The City’s primary means of addressing roadside vegetation is through the 
Hazardous Vegetation Abatement Ordinance. Private owners are responsible for 
clearing 3’ out and 13½’ up from the edge of pavement. Chief Goodspeed responds to 
complaints and most people comply.  This is complaint-driven process and often 
requires the Chief’s practical interpretation and adjustment.  
 
Public: City-owned properties are the responsibility of NC Public Works.  Work requests 
can be submitted via the City website. 

 
Strategies  

A. Continue to inform the public about the availability of the Hazardous Vegetation 
Abatement Ordinance.  

-- DCSS and GCNA Firewise groups will include this info in upcoming 
newsletters/emails. (Richard, Sam Gitchel)   July 19: I drafted this article 
and emailed it to Teri, Annette, Terry, and Richard.  
-- Explore neighborhood groups and FW groups-in-training that may be 
able to publicize in other parts of NC.  (Richard)  
-- Announce in town halls and other public forums. (All)  
 



Cost: cost to NC is low as program is currently conducted  
Effort: moderate 
Feasibility: A is feasible in the near term.  B, C, and D will take longer.  
Impact: safer evacuation and FD access  
Chance of success: Before we can measure success, we need a more specific 
definition.  

 
B. Include City-owned and City-responsibility (leased) properties in the City’s 

eventual vegetation management plan (VMP).  
Cost: Overall cost of veg mgmt plan estimated at $50-150K  
Effort: small part of the overall effort to create VMP. 
Feasibility: high, once VMP is funded  
Impact: low impact, since it would only apply to property owned or managed by 
NC.  
Chance of success: high 

 
 Sidelined for now: 

C. Develop “shovel-ready” project proposals for City-owned and City-managed 
properties. This means having projects fully defined with permissions and quotes 
on file.  First step: inquire about  shovel-ready projects program at FSC; is this 
viable?  
Cost: cost to NC -- little or nothing  
Effort: moderate to high. Depends on specific requirements of the shovel-ready 
projects program.   
Feasibility: explore with FSC and/or other sponsors  
Impact: impact would be limited in scope but important to the affected neighbors.  

 
D. Inventory and assess roads and streets and identify those in greatest need. 

Create list or map of areas that need abatement.  
 
Cost, effort, feasibility, impact would depend on program parameters.  

 
2. Develop volunteer program for hand clearing and scotch broom removal.  

A standing cadre of volunteers could address issues on an ongoing basis and could 
work in locations the Washington Ridge crew cannot go. They might be available to 
assist elderly or other residents in need. However, many jobs cannot be handled by 
volunteers and our volunteer pool seems to be stretched thin.  
 
DCSS and GCNA Firewise groups already do this in their areas, which cover about ¼ of 
NC.   

 
We believe this sort of program is best centered in FW/neighborhood groups where 
people have a sense of personal investment. For a City-wide program, the chance of 



success is best if it can be part of a spirited, community-involved effort so volunteers feel 
they are part of something bigger.  

 
Eventually, a comprehensive vegetation management plan will help identify needs and 
guide volunteers.  
 
Strategies:  

A. Explore what other neighborhood groups and FW groups-in-training are doing in 
other parts of NC. (Richard)  

  Cost: none 
Feasibility: good  
Chance of success: good  
Impact: ?  

 
B. Include vegetation projects in City-sponsored cleanup days. Reinette and Dawn 

may be able to help identify participants.  
 

Cost: low in $; moderate in time  
Feasibility: small scale project has potential  
Impact: Low to moderate. Effectiveness depends on robustness and 
sustainability of program.  
Chance of success: Depends on scale of program. Best chance is for one-off 
activities.  A sustained City-wide program will require an enthusiastic and 
persistent coordinator.  
Limitation: Liability concerns should be considered -- discuss with City attorney?  

 
3. Develop green waste dump site.  Improved access to green waste disposal may 

improve residents’ removal of vegetation.  This could include a local site (e.g. Pioneer 
Park) and/or extended dates for accepting waste.  
 
Strategies:   

A. Chief Goodspeed recently discussed adding a NC site with Jamie Jones at the 
Fire Safe Council, as part of their grant, and he will maintain contact about this. 
It’s a possibility for 2021, possibly near Pioneer Park.   

 
Cost: potentially funded by County OES and/or FSC 
Effort: unsure what’s involved 
Feasibility: moderate 
Impact: Unsure how much this would improve fuel reduction activities, given 
availability of other sites. 

 Chance of success: moderate 
 

4. Use CCC to clear properties.  



NC has primarily used Washington Ridge/CalFire inmate crews for work on City-owned 
land.  Last year NC deployed the crew approximately one day a week, but that 
agreement has expired.  
 
Strategy:  

A. Explore costs, availability, and type of work CCC can do; practical 
considerations.  (Richard)  
 
Cost: ? 
Effort: moderate 
Feasibility: unsure 
Impact: depends on scale  
Chance of success: depends on info Richard gets 

 
5. Use prescribed fire to maintain City properties that have been cleared.   

Sidelined for now. We are not aware of City-owned properties that are currently 
candidates for this treatment.  We invite specific suggestions for places this might work.  

 
Cost: low 
Effort: high at this time.  Potentially this could be an efficient method for reducing 
fuels.  
Feasibility: perhaps feasible after hand crews and/or mechanical thinning have 
removed ladder fuels. Burning is prohibited in NC without a variance, largely due 
to air quality concerns.  
Impact: low to moderate  
Chance of success: ?    

 
6. Enforce hazardous vegetation ordinance.  Underway. Chief Goodspeed acts on 

complaints from residents and uses photos to document problems. It’s a complaint 
driven process so more eyes help.  FW communities and others can make requests.  

  
Strategy:  

A. Publicize availability of NC vegetation abatement ordinance and complaint 
process. Complaint form is on City website.  

 
Cost: Current level of enforcement is within the FD budget.  A more proactive 
program could be created by funding an additional staff position, e.g.  a code 
enforcement or prevention officer.  
Feasibility: Feasible at current scale. Significant expansion would require more 
resources.  
Impact: Abatement notices usually get good results.  Are the numbers available 
on this program? 
Chance of success:  Usually effective. Most people comply after first notice.  

 



 WORK 
ANALYSIS 

MATRIX 
ICS 234-CG 

1.  Incident Name 
Public Education (Erin, 
Sam Goodspeed, Terry, 
Teri) 

2. Operational Period 
From:        2020                    To: 

3.  Operation’s 
Objectives 
DESIRED OUTCOME 

4.  Strategies 
HOW 

5.  Tactics/Work Assignments 
WHO, WHAT, WHERE, WHEN 

 

Host quarterly town 
hall to focus on fire 
preparedness 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Annette would love to see the Town Hall 
meetings/gatherings show movies like the 
Netflix original called Fire in Paradise. Then 
host a Q and A afterwards.... 

 

 

 

City should host a 
location for a 
Community Resource 
Center with PG&E 
(PSPS) 

  

Work with KVMR and 
YubaNet to promote 
wildfire safety and 
mitigation efforts. 

 

Annette would love to work with KVMR 
and Yubanet to get defensible space 
information out to the community, as I am 
a Defensible Space Advisor Volunteer 
with the Nevada County Firewise Council. 
This is something I can speak to Firewise 
about so we are not duplicating efforts. 
 
 

 

Ensure we are not 
duplicating efforts of 
the FireSafe Council. 
Collaborate. 

  



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 


